
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT

Date & Time - Tuesday, 12 September 2017 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, T A Carter, 
P C Foyster, A Harrison and M D Seymour

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  4 September 2017



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
6.30pm 1. Apologies for absence. 

6.31pm 2. Declaration of Interests - 
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest to the meeting 
and leave the room without participating in any 
discussion or making a statement on the item, except 
where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a 
grant of dispensation). 

6.32pm 3. Minutes - 
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 22 June 2017 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 1 - 
12)

6.35pm 4. Quarterly Risk Report, Quarter 1 2017-18 - 
To inform the Committee of the current status of the 
Councils’ strategic risks (report of the Executive Director 
– Strategy and Governance is enclosed).

(Pages 13 
- 26)

6.50pm 5. ISA 260 Report 16/17 - 
To receive the ISA 260 Report 16/17 (report of KPMG to 
follow).

7.05pm 6. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity - 
To examine progress made between 1 April and 31 
August 2017 in relation to the completion of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 (report of the Head of 
Internal Audit is enclosed).

(Pages 27 
- 36)

7.20pm 7. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment - 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) document on “audit committees – 
practical guidance for local authorities and police” sets 
out the guidance in the function and operation of audit 
committees. It is good practice for audit committees to 
complete a regular self-assessment exercise, to be 
satisfied that the Committee is performing effectively 
(report of the Head of Internal Audit is enclosed).

(Pages 37 
- 48)

7.35pm 8. Approval of Financial Statements 2016/17 - 
To seek approval for the annual governance statement 
for inclusion with the Council’s published financial 
statements and approval of the audited 2016-17 financial 
statements for publication (report of the Executive 
Director Commercialisation to follow).



7.50pm 9. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - 
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance is enclosed).

(Pages 49 
- 52)

7.55pm 10. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 22 June 2017 
at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)

C J T H Brewis T A Carter P C Foyster

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J R Astill, 
A Harrison and M D Seymour.

In Attendance:  J Cornett (Director, KPMG), H Brookes (Manager, KPMG), E Hodds 
(Internal Audit Consortium Manager, Eastern Internal Audit Services), S Toach 
(Principal Auditor, East Lindsey District Council), the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, the Head of Finance, the Finance Manager (Treasury), the 
Financial Control Manager, the Business Intelligence Officer (Charlotte Paine), the 
Business Intelligence Officer (Corey Gooch), the Democratic Services Officer and 
Councillor P E Coupland.

Action By
1. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

During discussion of agenda item 6, specifically around the 
dispute with the Peele School over disputed costs, Councillor 
Brewis declared that he had substantial knowledge of this issue.  
However, this was not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, he did 
not divulge any information, and he remained in the meeting.   

2. MINUTES 

Councillors considered the minutes of the meeting held on 27 
March 2017. With reference to attendance, John Cornett (KPMG) 
advised that he had been at the meeting but that Helen Brookes 
(KPMG) had not.  He also advised that he had presented the 
External Audit Plan 2016/17 report.

DECISION:

That, subject to the amendments detailed above, the minutes be 
agreed as a correct record and be signed by the Chairman. 

CM 

3. QUARTERLY RISK REPORT - QUARTER 4 2016/17 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance, which informed the Committee on the 
current status of the Council’s strategic risks.

The Business Intelligence Officer referred members to the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3.



- 2 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

strategic risk register that formed Appendix A within the report, 
which included 13 strategic risks.

The following risk areas were highlighted:

 There were currently no risks that were rated in the high risk 
category.

 There were currently ten risks which fell into the medium 
category.  Of these risks, most remained at the same score as 
the last quarter.  One risk, relating to the delivery of outcomes 
from the approved Welland Homes business plan had 
decreased from a risk score of 12 to 9.  Two further risks had 
increased their scores compared to the previous quarter.  
These were risks relating to the failure to maximise trading 
opportunities and staff recruitment and retention, which had 
both increased from a risk score of 9 to 12.

 There were 3 risks currently reported in the low category, and 
these were scored as they were in the previous quarter.

The Committee considered the report and the following points 
were raised:

 Members requested that in addition to the Strategic Risk 
Report showing the current quarter score and direction of 
travel, that an additional column be added showing the score 
for the previous quarter

 Failure to maximise trading opportunities – had the risk 
increased as a result of the Council not being able to rent the 
Priory Road offices out as hoped?

o The Authority needed to continue to review its 
commercial assets, and this was therefore 
supported by the higher risk given to this issue.

 Staff recruitment and retention at all levels within the 
organisation – this risk had increased.  What was the issue?

o Members were advised that the increase in this risk 
was specifically related to service review and the 
need to ensure that the correct people were placed 
in the correct roles.  It was not about difficulties in 
recruitment.  Many authorities were currently facing 
a similar situation.

 Failure to deliver Local Plan and its Delivery Plan – was there 
still a risk due to the New Homes Bonus? 

o This risk had emerged following the consultation 
document on the new homes bonus, relating to 
authorities that weren’t supported by a Local Plan, 
that had been published last year.  However, 

Page 2



- 3 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

following the recent General Election and the 
Queens Speech, there was no indication that this 
was being progressed.  In addition, the Authority 
was very shortly due to submit its Local Plan, 
resulting in a lower risk level.

 CPBS, Failure to deliver core services – a number of key 
officers had left or were leaving, and the service was currently 
struggling to recruit suitable replacements.  Should this risk be 
increased?

o There had been an improvement in performance 
within the Revenues and Benefits team which meant 
that the risk did not need to be increased in relation 
to that aspect.  However, the impact of the loss of 
personnel within the Finance department would be 
looked at shortly in the Q1 update.

AGREED:

That the contents of the report be noted, and that the comments 
made by the Committee be taken on board where appropriate.

(Both Business Intelligence Officers left the meeting following 
consideration of this item.)  

CG, CP 

4. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND TECHNICAL 
UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report from KPMG, which 
provided details of the external audit progress and technical 
update, as at June 2017.

The report provided the Governance and Audit Committee with an 
overview of progress in delivering KPMG’s responsibilities as the 
external auditors.  The report also highlighted the main technical 
issues which were currently having an impact on local 
government.  The articles that were believed to have an impact at 
the Authority had been flagged and a perspective had been 
provided on each issue.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

5. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Internal Audit 
Consortium Manager, which examined progress made since 7 
December 2016 in relation to the completion of the Annual 

Page 3



- 4 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17.  The Principal Auditor for East 
Lindsey District Council was in attendance to answer any 
questions relating to the audit reviews on work undertaken by 
Compass Point Business Services.

The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on 
progress made against the annual internal audit plan.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal 
audit activity.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive (Internal Audit Consortium Manager) to report to 
the Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal 
audit relative to its agreed plan, including any significant risk 
exposures and control issues.  The frequency of reporting was to 
each meeting.  To comply with requirements, the report identified:

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
 Performance Indicator outcomes to date

The Committee was advised that the current position in 
completing audits to date within the financial year was shown in 
Appendix 1, with the internal audit plan of work for 2016/17 
completed.

During the period covered by the report, Internal Audit Services 
had issued 5 final reports, 2 assurance reports (Licensing and 
Business Support (Reasonable Assurance) and Corporate 
Governance (Reasonable Assurance)); and 3 position statements 
(Transformation Programme, Leisure and ISO Gap Analysis).

In addition, in quarter 4 of 2016/17, ELDC undertook key internal 
audit reviews on areas of work undertaken by Compass Point 
Business Services.  These included Income; Housing Rents; 
Accounts Receivable; Revenues; Benefits; Accountancy Services; 
Payroll; and Accounts Payable

The Committee considered the report, and the following points 
were raised:

 Appendix 2 (Assurance Review of Licensing and Business 
Support) – with regard to taxi licence fees, had the Authority 
lost money ?

o The Authority had not lost money however, a review 
had to be undertaken at regular intervals to ensure 
the right amount was being charged and that costs 

Page 4



- 5 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

were covered.    

 Appendix 2 (Leisure) – How large was the issue with regard to 
the dispute with the Peele School over disputed costs?

o Officers were working on this to ensure that the 
dispute was resolved.  The Authority was owed 
some money, so there was some risk involved.

 Was any monitoring to be undertaken to establish whether the 
closure of the cash desk at the Priory Road office had an 
effect of the level of arrears? 

o A large amount of work had already by done to 
advertise the closure, and it was not anticipated that 
arrears would increase.  The amount of cash taken 
at the cash officer had dropped substantially over 
the last few months, levels of arrears were always 
monitored, and no difference had been seen.  In 
addition, there were now more places for people to 
pay.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

6. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Internal Audit 
Consortium Manager which provided members with the position 
on progress made by management in implementing agreed 
Internal Audit recommendations as at 31 March 2017.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to its Internal 
Audit Service.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive (Internal Audit Consortium Manager) to establish 
a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure 
that they had been effectively implemented or that senior 
management had accepted the risk of not taking action.  The 
frequency of reporting was twice yearly.

The report laid out the process followed, which included the 
uploading of recommendations to the Council’s performance 
management system (Covalent), and how non responses or 
recommendations which had been overdue for a long time were 
dealt with, initially through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board 
and the Finance Board, and then ultimately through the Executive 
Management Team.

Page 5



- 6 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

A summary position as at 31 March 2017 was provided which 
showed 58% of recommendations completed, and 43% 
outstanding (which were at various stages with the process, at 
Priority 1, 2 or 3).

In relation to historic recommendations, i.e. those which were 
raised by Audit Lincolnshire, progress had been made with 11 
outstanding (2 urgent and 9 important).

To date in 2016/17, internal audit had raised 48 
recommendations, 26 of which had been implemented by 
management, 6 of which were outstanding (none urgent, 4 
important and 2 needing attention) and 16 were not yet due.  

The Committee considered the report, and the following points 
were made:

 One of the historic outstanding internal audit 
recommendations related to Housing Debts, and within this it 
was stated that a lettings report was run to show the tenancies 
that had ended that week.  When looking at debts, why was a 
report run at the end of a tenancy?

o Officers agreed that current, ongoing tenancies 
should be looked at rather than those that had 
ended.

 Car Park Income Coding – Had the report on funding of the 
adaption of car park machines to card payment been tabled to 
the Transformation Board meeting in May?

o Officers advised that this information would be 
sought and fed back to members. 

 Two Corporate Health and Safety items had been given a 
three month extension.  How was this agreed? Was there 
liaison between managers and auditors?  The current revised 
deadline dates were at the end of next week – how realistic 
was it that these deadlines would be met?

o The Committee was advised that the three month 
extension would have arisen from management 
comments, and audit would then have considered 
whether they were happy with the request.  There 
would be liaison during the three months and issues 
would be considered regularly. Generally, it was not 
good practice to extend deadlines by more than 
three months. One of the Committee’s roles should 
be to keep a watching brief on issues that were 
regularly outstanding over longer periods.

 It was suggested that the Committee needed to consider what 

MC 

EH, CM 

Page 6



- 7 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

assurances were provided to ensure that issues were picked 
up, and were six-monthly updates sufficient?

o The Committee agreed that six-monthly follow up 
updates were sufficient, but that more information 
on progress should be provided within the progress 
reports.  Where deadlines were not met, 
consideration should be given to requesting that 
relevant managers attend the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; 

b) That comments made by the Committee be noted; and

c) That additional information on follow up requested by the 
Committee be provided in the progress reports.  

CM 

7. ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2016/17 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an Annual Report and Opinion for 2016/17, 
drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit work performed over 
the course of the year, and concluded on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit.

The purpose of the Annual Report and Opinion was to meet the 
requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS), and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, 
specifically:

 The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control during 2016/17, together with reasons, if the opinion 
was unfavourable;

 A summary of the internal audit work carried out from which 
the opinion was derived, the follow up of management action 
taken to ensure implementation of agreed action as at 
financial year end, and any reliance placed upon third party 
assurances;

 Any issues that were deemed particularly relevant to the 
Annual Governance Statement; and

 The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, 
which included; the level of compliance with the PSIAS and 
the results of any quality assurance and improvement 
programme, the outcomes of the performance indicators and 
the degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role 
of the Head of Internal Audit.

Page 7



- 8 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

The overall opinion in relation to the framework of governance, 
risk management and control at South Holland District Council 
was reasonable (positive), based on the conclusions formed over 
the course of the financial year.  However, there were areas 
which needed to be noted, and these were detailed within 
paragraph 3.5 of the report.  In providing the opinion, the 
Council’s risk management framework and supporting processes, 
the relative materiality of the issues arising from the internal audit 
work during the year, and management’s progress in addressing 
any control weaknesses identified therefrom had been taken into 
account.  The opinion had been discussed with the Section 151 
Officer prior to publication.

With reference to the fraud related policies mentioned within 
paragraph 3.5 of the report, members were advised that the 
internal auditors would bring this information forward to the 
Committee.

It was agreed that the general picture was good however, a 
watching brief would  need to be kept on some areas.

AGREED:

a) That the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the 
Head of Internal Audit be received and approved;

b) That it be noted that a reasonable audit opinion had been 
given in relation to governance, risk management and control 
for the year ended 31 March 2017;

c) That the opinions expressed together with significant matters 
arising from internal audit work and contained within the report 
should be given due consideration when developing and 
reviewing the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 
2016/17; and 

d) That the conclusions of the Review of the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit be noted.

(The Principal Auditor (East Lindsey) left the meeting following 
consideration of this item). 

CM 

8. UN-AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2016/17 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation which presented the unaudited Financial 
Statements 2016/17 for members’ consideration, prior to formal 
approval.

Page 8



- 9 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

The Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 required that the 
Responsible Financial Officer signed the unaudited statement of 
accounts no later than 30 June, and that the statement of 
accounts be considered and approved by a committee of the 
Council no later than 30 September.  From 2017/18, the 
deadlines would move forward to 31 May and 31 July 
respectively.

The Financial Statements production process was complete, and 
attached at Appendix A was the unaudited version of the 2016/17 
Financial Statements (which included the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement, Cash Flow 
Statement and Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017).  Members 
were advised that minor presentational adjustments may still be 
undertaken before the statutory deadline for publishing the 
accounts (30 June). 

The Accounts had been prepared in accordance with the Code of 
Practice and the Council’s accounting policies.  There had been 
some significant presentational changes in the 2016/17 Code of 
Practice, and these were detailed within the report.  In addition to 
the changes required by the Code, the Council had produced 
Group Accounts for 2016/17, consolidating the transactions 
relating to its subsidiary companies, South Holland Homes 
Community Interest Company and Welland Homes Ltd.

The unaudited Financial Statement contained the draft Annual 
Governance Statement, which the Committee was asked to 
approve.  

The Committee considered the report, and thanked officers for the 
thorough explanation of the content provided.

AGREED:

a) That the unaudited Financial Statements 2016/17 be noted; 
and

b) That the draft Annual Governance Statement, included within 
the unaudited Financial Statements 2016/17, be approved. 

9. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2016/17 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) which requested that the Committee 
consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 2016-17, 
prior to it being submitted to Council for approval.

Page 9



- 10 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

The Council was required, by regulation issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003, to produce an annual treasury 
management review of activities, and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2016/17.  The report met the requirements 
of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

The regulatory environment placed responsibility on members for 
the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and 
activities.  The report was therefore important in that respect, as it 
provided details of the outturn position for treasury activities and 
highlighted compliance with the Council’s policies previously 
approved by members.

The Council also confirmed that it had complied with the 
requirement under the Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the 
above treasury management report by the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  Member training on treasury management issues to 
support members’ scrutiny role was not undertaken during 
2016/17.  Arrangements would be made for training to be 
provided during the 2017/18 financial year if required.

The report summarised the following areas:

 Capital activity during the year;
 Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying 

indebtedness (the Capital Financing Requirement);
 The actual prudential and treasury indicators;
 Overall treasury position identifying how the Council had 

borrowed in relation to its indebtedness, and the impact on 
investment balances;

 Summary of interest rate movements in the year;
 Detailed debt activity; and
 Detailed investment activity

The Committee considered the report, and the following points 
were made:

 Were regular checks made to ensure that projects earmarked 
for capital expenditure were still viable?

o The Authority had a structure capital programme, 
and it was possible to restructure approved projects 
within this.

 What was the position with regard to investments held with the 
Qatar National Bank?

o Members were provided with an explanation of how 

Page 10



- 11 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 22 June 2017

the ratings were arrived at, and that officers were 
keeping an eye on the situation.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

10. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which presented the Work Programme of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as set out in Appendix A within 
the report.

AGREED:

That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted. 

11. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none. 

(The meeting ended at 8.17 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 12th September 2017

Author: Greg Pearson - Corporate Improvement & Performance Manager

Subject: Quarterly Risk Report, Q1 2017/18

Purpose: To inform the Committee on the current status of the Councils’ strategic 
risks

Recommendation: 

1)  That the contents of the report are noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1. The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was in June 2017 for Q4.  
Since then, there have been a number of changes to the strategic risk register which are 
highlighted in this report.  

1.2 This report is generated using the Covalent system and includes updates on strategic risks 
for quarter 1, 2017/18.

1.3 Strategic risks are visible on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and risks are reviewed by EMT quarterly.  In addition, risks are 
reviewed monthly at the officer-led Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired by the 
Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.4. Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with the responsible members of EMT.  
These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic direction of the council, 
rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that affect discrete service areas. 
The strategic risk register includes 14 strategic risks (see Appendix A). 

1.5 Strategic risks typically affect the whole of the organisation and not just one or more parts 
of it. Strategic risks can potentially involve very high stakes and often affect the ability of the 
organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the Council to achieve its corporate plan 
objectives and purpose. 

1.6 The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix, and is comparable with 
best practice in other, similar organisations.  The risk matrix provides a comprehensive 
assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a 
numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it 
happening.

1.7 Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating 
High
Medium
Low

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.



1.8 Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks currently 
reported at each score 

1.9 There are currently no risks that are rated in the high risk category. 

1.10 There are currently eleven risks which fall into the medium category. Of these risks, most 
remain at the same score as last quarter. One risk, relating to the uncertainty over future 
government funding settlement, increased from a risk score of 9 to 12. This is due to the 
continued uncertainty following the finance bill and the business rates not having been fully 
defined. One further risk has decreased its score compared to the previous quarter. This is 
the risk relating to the delivery of the Local Plan which, following its submission to the 
planning inspectorate in June, has reduced from 12 to 4 with the impact still high but 
likelihood now much reduced.

The risk regarding the failure to deliver core services with CPBS has changed, whilst 
remaining at a score of 12, the impact has increased and the likelihood decreased. This is 
because there has now been recruitment within finance, which decreases the likelihood of 
failure, but with ICT vacancies and a settling in period for new staff, the impact of failure in 
these two services remains high. The update from CPBS is that ICT are undergoing a small 
review to ensure that the right roles are interviewed for to ensure ongoing service 
proficiency. 

1.11 There are 3 risks currently reported in the low category are these are scored as they were 
in the previous quarter.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the contents of the report are noted.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Not applicable

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 That the Committee is made aware of the Council’s strategic risks and understands that 
they are being managed and mitigated effectively.

Page 14



5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities.

5.2 Financial

5.2.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the Council’s budgets           
           and financial management.

5.3 Risk Management

5.3.1 The report provides detail on the Council’s strategic risks.

5.4 Staffing

5.4.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the 
           Council’s corporate priorities 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 EMT – Executive Management Team

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Greg Pearson, Corporate Improvement and Performance 
Manager

Telephone Number: 07500-030900 
Email: greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A South Holland District Council Strategic Risk Register (Q1 
2017/18)

Page 15

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report inc Targets

Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Medium
Term
Financial
Plan Not
Delivered

The Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
includes a balanced 
position which is 
dependant on 
delivery of the 
“MovingForward” 
Transformation plan

12

There are a 
number of controls
 in place to track 
delivery including 
transformation 
board, 
Performance, Risk
 & Audit Board & 
Finance Board. 
PI's are tracking 
variance from plan

12 4 3

Initial moving forward 
target savings have 
been identified and 
delivered, however, 
future savings now 
depend on ongoing 
delivery of savings 
from organisational re-
design and 
particularly, generating
 significant ongoing 
savings from our 
major asset reviews 
which are all making 
good progress.

03 Aug
2017

3 2

Uncertainty
over future
government
 funding
settlement

Government funding
 reductions due to a 
weakening of the 
economy may be 
experienced during 
the period of the 
MTFP 

12

4yr MTFP sets out
 programme to be 
free of reliance on 
RSG by 2019. 
Setting investment
 funds, commercial
 property and 
growth to ensure 
continued income

12 4 3

Due to the finance bill 
not proceeding the 
risk has been 
increased due to the 
level of uncertainty

03 Aug
2017

2 2

P
age 17



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Failure to
maximise
trading
opportunitie
s

Failure to maximise 
trading opportunities
 could result in lack 
of commercial 
exploitation of 
assets or income 
from trading arms 

9

Governance is in 
place for MTFP 
through
transformation 
board, finance 
board and
Performance Risk 
and Audit Board 
which monitor the 
work towards
maximising trading 
opportunities

12 4 3

The Council's MTFP, 
approved by Council 
on 22nd February, 
includes assumed 
savings during the 4 
years to 20/21. In 
order to deliver these 
savings the Council 
will need to review the
 use of its major 
commercial assets to 
maximise income and 
reduce operating 
costs.

15 Aug
2017

2 2

Staff
recruitment
and
retention at
all levels
within the
organisatio
n

Staff recruitment and
 retention issues 
could undermine the
 effectiveness of the 
organisations though
 loss of experience 
and knowledge 

15

The mitigation for 
key senior posts 
that are vacant or 
serving their notice
 period will be to 
start recruitment 
and find suitable 
interim cover. 

12 3 4

Staff turnover is 
currently higher due to
 Service reviews. 
During this quarter we
 have struggled with 
recruiting into planning
 roles as well as a 
deputy section 151 
officer, however our 
staff retention rates 
remain high 
throughout these 
reviews.

24 Jul
2017

2 2

P
age 18



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

CPBS
Failure to
deliver core
services

CPBS Failure to 
deliver core services
 - 
HR/IT/Finance/Reve
nues & Benefits 

12

Number of
Governance
processes in place
including
monitoring of
performance in
performance, risk
and audit baord.
CPBS also has its
own board with
governance.

12 4 3

Recent staff turnover 
has been high for 
Finance within CPBS 

There are recruitment 
issues across the 
whole of Lincolnshire
especially in relation 
to Finance posts 
however, CPBS have 
managed to 
successfully recruit an
 interim Head of 
Finance and a new 
interim Strategic 
Business Partner. 

Another area of 
concern is staffing 
levels within IT, this is 
being addressed by 
the Head of IT, all 
vacant positions are in
 the interview process 
W/C 31/07/17 and 
there is also a smaller
 service review type 
exercise being 
undertaken by the 
department to look at 
using existing staff to 
expand skill sets and 
cover a wider area of 
skills/knowledge using
 the existing resources
 available.

15 Aug
2017

2 2P
age 19



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

General
Data
Protection
Regulation
Implementa
tion

With the 
implementation of 
the General Data 
Protection 
Regulation, which 
replaces the Data 
Protection Action of 
1998, there is a risk 
that the council will 
not manage its data 
appropriately and in 
line with the new 
regulations.

16

Monthly meetings 
of the statutory 
information group 
have highlighted 
areas which need 
to be addressed 
and training is 
being delivered in 
September for 
managers and 
proposed service 
Data Protection 
leads.

12 4 3

This is being 
considered regularly 
by the Statutory 
Information Group. 
Training has been 
arranged for early 
October. A gap 
analysis has been 
commissioned. Once 
the results of the gap 
analysis are in and 
there is an action plan
 in place the score will
 be updated.

15 Aug
2017

2 2

P
age 20



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Critical
breach of
ICT security

Attacks are 
happening with 
increasing frequency
 at present. Ransom
 and theft specialists
 are targeting 
banking details and 
personal information,
 as with all other 
government systems
 and private 
companies 

25

There is a 
comprehensive 
suite of protection 
measures in place
 including email 
filtering, web 
filtering, antivirus 
and windows 
updates which 
help to protect 
from viruses

10 5 2

The IT service has 
undertaken a number 
of projects and 
business as usual 
activities over the last 
3 months which will 
prevent the risk from 
increasing. These 
projects are 

• Currently
requirements and
mitigation plan from
externally provided
gap analysis
• Patching of servers
and applications 
• Patching of the
councils Wi-Fi
infrastructure
• Patching of the
councils Firewalls and
proxies
• Proactively emailed
staff on how to avoid
becoming a victim of
cyber-crime and what
to do if they think
there device is
infected by malicious
code.
• Upgraded the
council’s standard
suite of device
applications in line
with PSN
requirements.
• Continued to
implement
recommendations
identified by TIAA
Cyber Security Audit

15 Aug
2017

4 2

P
age 21



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Impact of
business
rate appeals

Business rate 
retention policy 
changes leave the 
council exposed to 
risks on collection 
and baseline 
income. 

20

Financial provision
 has been made to
 cover the risk of 
current appeals, 
collection rates 
and growth

9 3 3

There has been a 
decrease in the 
provision for appeals 
in Q1 (2017/18) of 
£0.5m. This is partly 
due to a reduction of 
£1.3m for the one 
remaining power 
station appeal in Q1. 
The rateable value of 
this property dropped 
in March 2017 by 8%, 
but a further appeal 
against the RV 
remains outstanding, 
though it is not 
expected that a 
provision at the 
previous level of 14% 
is required. We await 
a decision from the 
Valuation Office on 
this appeal.

15 Aug
2017

2 2

P
age 22



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Failure to
deliver
financial &
non-
financial
outcomes
of the
approved
Welland
Homes
business
plan

Failure to deliver 
financial & non-
financial outcomes 
of the approved 
business plan has 
implication in areas 
which include Legal,
 reputational and 
Financial. Risk also 
refers to capacity 
and expertise in the 
organsation to 
deliver the housing 
development 
requirement for both
 the HRA and 
Welland Homes.

8

Mitigations as 
follows; 
• Revised
governance
including
strengthened
terms of reference.
• Improved
communication on
Council policies to
the WH Board.
• Increased
operational
capability and
capacity within
Council to support
future programmes
and WH Board of

Directors.
• Revision of
original business
plan was
presented to
Cabinet and
approved by Full
Council in July 16
• Introduction of a
Housing
Development
programme
manager
• Explore external
partnerships for
specialist delivery
expertise
• Review requests
for quotations for
Parkside Crescent
/ Severn road

projects and
recommend a way
forward for these

projects

9 3 3

Layer 1 - Green lane 
completed and fully 
let. Long Sutton 
approved by cabinet 
and council 

Layer 2 - Out to 
tender for further 
revenue to facilitate 
decision making with 
regards to future 
development sites. 

There are other layer 
1 opportunities being 
sought.  

Good progress is 
being made with the 
business plan 
however there is some
 delay due to planning
 and procurement.

03 Aug
2017

2 2

P
age 23



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Publication
of gender
pay gap
under
transparenc
y legislation

The evolution of 
Transparency 
legislation will mean 
a requirement to 
publish the gap 
between male and 
female earnings 
within pay bandings.
 This could lead to 
increased scrutiny 
from the unions 
which may trigger a 
Unison audit. The 
collateral effect of 
the risk coming to 
fruition would be 
around reputational 
damage and legal 
ramifications of 
potentially 
backdated claims 
from workers. 

12

The mitigation for 
this is to 
proactively 
establish i) if there
 is a gender based
 pay gap within job
 roles and ii) to 
identify funding to 
cover any liability 
in this area should
 liability be 
identified. The 
Council advocates
 equitable and fair 
treatment of its 
employees and 
would not wish to 
perpetuate any 
such discrepancy. 

6 3 2

We are providing a 
statement at next full 
council regarding the 
position with gender 
pay gap, ,it is showing
 that the council is in a
 good position 
regarding the 
legislation and is 
ahead of schedule for 
release. 

There is a slight area 
of concern around 
areas like the waste 
depot however this 
can be explained due 
to more interest from 
males in the jobs that 
sit within such areas, 
the jobs are 
advertised and 
catered equally to 
both genders but there
 is just more interest 
from males despite 
equal offerings.

24 Jul
2017

2 2

Failure to
deliver the
council's
Corporate
Priorities

Would lead to 
missed targets and 
failure to deliver 
objectives and may 
result in the Council 
suffering reputational
 damage and a 
failure to deliver 
priorities to 
residents. 

4

Corporate Delivery
Plan sets out how
to acheive
corporate plan and
this is under
pinned by
individual service
plans and these
are monitored at
Perfromance, Risk
& Audit Board
monthly

4 2 2

This risk is being 
mitigated by 
continuous monitoring 
and monthly 
performance clinics 
with managers and 
action owners via the 
CIP team. Whilst the 
risk does remain 
within set parameters, 
it is still prudent to 
monitor this risk. 

20 Jul
2017

2 2

P
age 24



Title Description
Original
Score Controls/

Mitigation
Current Risk
Score Impact Likeli-

hood
Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest
Update
Date

Target
Impact

Target
Likelihood

Failure to
deliver
Local Plan
and its
Delivery
Plan

Failure to deliver 
Local Plan and its 
Delivery Plan - 
reputational and 
financial risk due to 
possible Secretary 
of State intervention.
 there is also a new 
risk emerging due to
 New Homes Bonus.

8
Dedicated senior
officer and EMT
support to deliver
the local plan

4 4 1

The South East 
Lincolnshire Local 
Plan has been 
submitted to the 
Planning Inspectorate 
on 23rd June for 
independent 
Examination. the 
Examination is now 
under way with 
hearing sessions due 
to be held in October 
and November. 

As such, the plan is 
progressing through 
this final part of the 
process and as such 
the likelihood of failure
 to deliver has been 
downgraded at this 
point.

09 Aug
2017

4 3

Impact of
County
Council
Budget
Reductions

Impact of County 
Council Budget 
Reductions. This will
 potentially impact 
on resident 
wellbeing. 

9

Ensure that Place 
directorate are 
involved early in 
conversations to 
represent the 
council and its 
residents

4 2 2

In terms of budget 
impacts, this is closely
 monitored to ensure 
there is no impact to 
reductions, in areas 
where funding has 
been lost this has now
 been accounted for. It
 is also monitored in 
terms of the loss of 
services and their 
impact to the 
community.

16 Aug
2017

2 2

Failure to
effectively
implement
corporate
business
continuity
plan

Failure could lead to
 an impact on 
delivery of services, 
loss of IT systems, 
ineffective 
communication or a 
failure to provide 
suitable premises 

4

Working jointly
with County to
have business
continuity post.
Each team has a
plan reviewed
annually

3 3 1

Score remains the 
same.  SLA with LCC 
terminated. New 
Emergency Planning 
Officer recruited 
directly by SHDC and 
has started in post.

18 Jul
2017

3 1

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District Council 

To: Governance and Audit Committee 12 September 2017

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 1 April and 31 August 2017 
in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18.

Recommendation(s): 

1) That members note the progress to date with the internal audit plan of work for 
2017/18.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 
annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit to report to the 
Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting. 

To comply with the above the report identifies: - 
o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
o Performance measure outcomes to date.

2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1 The current position and issues in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit 
Plan 2017/18 are shown within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 
Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards, and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 
working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6.



4.2 Financial 

4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan is being delivered within the approved budget for 2017/18.

4.3 Risk Management 

4.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 
for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Emma Hodds

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Page 28



Page 1 of 8

Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Period Covered: 1 April to 31 August 2017

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................2

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ....................2

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ..............................2

4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ............................................................3

5. RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION – SUMMARY POSITION .............................3

6. PERFORMANCE MEASURES.........................................................................................4

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK...................5

APPENDIX 2 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES....................................................................7

Page 29



Page 2 of 8

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the 
internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to 
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any 
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific 
content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes: - 

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
 Performance Indicator outcomes to date.

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

2.1 At the meeting on 27 March 2017, the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was approved, 
identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Since then, the following amendments have 
been made:

Audit description Nature of the change

Communications The area of communications has recently been 
assessed via a Peer Review. This audit was 
initially proposed to provide independent 
oversight of the results of the peer review and to 
look at the outcomes to see how the 
recommendations flowing from this are being 
delivered.

However, there is now a mechanism in place for 
monitoring progress against agreed actions and 
therefore it was agreed that a formal audit was 
not necessary.

Reduction of four days.

Elections & Electoral Registration The area of elections was out-scoped from this 
review as there has been no election activity 
recently that hasn’t already been subject to 
scrutiny by either the Cabinet Office or the 
County Council. 

Reduction of four days.

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK

3.1 The current position in completing audits to date within the financial year is shown in 
Appendix 1 and progress to date is in line with expectations. 

Page 30



Page 3 of 8

3.2 In summary:

41.5 days of programmed work has been completed by Eastern Internal Audit Services, 
equating to 27% of the (revised) Audit Plan for 2017/18.

16 days of programmed work has been completed by East Lindsey District Council, equating 
to 25% of the (revised) Audit Plan for 2017/18.

4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK

Eastern Internal Audit Services

4.1 The Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Growth and Efficiency Programme (GL LEGE), 
branded Grants4Growth, is an ERDF funded project managed and delivered by South 
Holland District Council's Economic Development Service.

The objective of the first phase of the audit was to confirm that the controls used to compile 
the claim are robust and effective. The testing undertaken assessed the control environment, 
and carried out a high-level analysis of claim two, which covered the period January to 
March 2017. No issues were identified that needed attention by management. 

The second phase of this review is due to be completed in quarter three of the financial year. 

4.2 The review of Planning, Planning Enforcement and Section 106 Agreement has been 
completed and two reports issued; one on Planning & Planning Enforcement and one on 
Section 106 Agreements. Management responses are imminent in respect of the first report 
and a meeting has been set up in September to discuss the second report with 
management. 

4.3 The audits of Corporate Performance & Corporate Plan, Asset Management and Elections & 
Electoral Registration are now complete, with the draft reports currently being finalised by 
the contractor. 

4.4 The remaining work for quarter two (Welland Homes, Environmental Protection and IT 
Project Delivery Phase 1) is planned in and will be complete by the end of the quarter. 

East Lindsey District Council (CPBS reviews)

4.5 The subsidy audit in relation to Housing Benefits is currently underway and is progressing as 
expected, the outcomes of this review are provided to the external auditor. 

4.6 The remaining work undertaken in CPBS services areas is planned in for the end of quarter 
two and quarter three. This will result in these audits being finalised sooner this year, 
enabling a much smoother year end reporting process. 

5. RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION – SUMMARY POSITION 

5.1 As requested by the Committee each progress report now contains a summary position in 
relation to the action taken by management to implement audit recommendations. This 
summary position will be further explored on a six-monthly basis through the full follow up 
reports already received by the Committee 

Internal Audit recommendations raised by Eastern Internal Audit Services

5.2 At 2016/17 financial year end there were 17 audit recommendation outstanding. 

Page 31



Page 4 of 8

11 of these were raised by Audit Lincolnshire, and remain outstanding. Management 
response has indicated that these are tied up with the Place Review, however the 
Performance, Risk and Audit Board has requested that an update is provided prior the next 
Committee meeting in December so as they can explore how these can be addressed.

Of the remaining six recommendations; four have now been addressed by management and 
two remain outstanding – one in relation to Cybersecurity and one in relation to the 
Ascoughfee Hall review. Revised deadline dates have been provided by management. 

The current position with the 2016//17 audit recommendations is as follows:

Number raised 48

Complete 34 71%

Outstanding 6 12%

Not yet due 8 17%

 Internal Audit recommendations – CPBS

5.3 At 2016/17 financial year end of the 40 recommendations raised within year, eight of these 
had been addressed by management and 32 were not yet due.

East Lindsey monitor the implementation of the audit recommendations on a regular basis 
with CPBS staff. The current position in relation to the 32 recommendations that were not yet 
due is:

o 11 have now been implemented by management
o 15 are not yet due, and
o Six are outstanding.

In addition, there were two recommendations relating to prior financial years which required 
action, one has been implemented and one, in relation to establishment lists, remains 
outstanding. 

6. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

6.1 The new Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures 
against which the new contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis. There are a total of 
11 indicators, over 4 areas, the performance measures can be seen at Appendix 2.

6.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however, 
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows:

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.
 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
 4 or below have met target = Red Status.

Page 32



Page 5 of 8

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by 
the contractor and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure that 
appropriate action is taken.

6.3 The first quarters work has been completed and a report on the performance measures 
provided to the Internal Audit Consortium Manager, performance is currently at green status 
with targets having been satisfactorily met for this quarter.

6.4 In addition to these quarterly reports from the Contractors Audit Director, ongoing weekly 
updates are provided to ensure that delivery of the audit plan for the current financial year is 
on track. A review of the most recent update indicates that work is on track as expected, as 
highlighted in this report. 

 

Page 33



Page 6 of 8

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

Audit Area Audit Ref No. of days Revised 
Days

Days 
Delivered

Status Assurance 
Level

Date to 
Committee

Urgent Important Needs 
Attention

Op

Quarter 1
Grants for Growth Phase 1 SH1801 2 2 2 Final Outcomes issued 14 

June 2017
Communications SH1802 4 0 0
Planning and Planning Enforcement SH1807 16 16 15 Draft Report issued 27 July 

2017
Section 106 SH1818 Draft Report issued 27 July 

2017
TOTAL 22 18 17
Quarter 2
Corporate Performance & Corporate Plan SH1803 7 7 6 Draft Report imminent
Welland Homes SH1804 10 10 1 Audit due to start 12 

September 2017
Environmental Protections SH1805 6 6 1 Audit due to start 11 

September 2017
Asset Management SH1809 10 10 9 Draft Report imminent
Elections & Electoral Registration SH1806 8 4 3 Draft Report imminent
TOTAL 41 37 20
Quarter 3
Housing Rents SH1808 12 12 0
Grants for Growth Phase 2 SH1801 6 6 0
Democratic Services SH1810 5 5 0
Housing needs, allocation, homelessness, 
housing register and PSH

SH1811 10 10 0

Planned maintenance, major contracts 
and property services
Responsive repairs, voids and recharges

SH1812 10 10 0

TOTAL 43 43 0

Recommendations

P
age 34



Page 7 of 8

Audit Area Audit Ref No. of days Revised 
Days

Days 
Delivered

Status Assurance 
Level

Date to 
Committee

Urgent Important Needs 
Attention

Op

Quarter 4
Corporate Governance SH1813 4 4 0
Risk Management SH1814 3 3 0
Transformation Programme SH1815 6 6 0
Procurement & Contract Management SH1816 8 8 0
TOTAL 21 21 0
IT Audits
IT Project Delivery - Phase 1 SH1817 7.5 7.5 0.5 Audit to start 11 September 

2017
IT Project Delivery - Phase 2 SH1817 5 5 0
IT Project Delivery - Phase 3 SH1817 7.5 7.5 0
TOTAL 20 20 0.5
Follow Up
Follow Up NA 12 12 4
TOTAL 12 12 4

TOTAL 159 151 41.5 0 0 0 0

Percentage of plan completed 27%

Audit delivered by East Lindsey District Council
Key Controls & Assurance tbc 20 20 0 Quarter three audit
Accounts Receivable tbc 10 10 0 Quarter two audit
Budget Management & Control tbc 10 10 0 Quarter three audit
Housing Benefit Subsidy tbc 25 25 16 Audit underway

65 65 16

25%

OVERALL TOTAL 224 216 57.5

27%

Recommendations

P
age 35



Page 8 of 8

APPENDIX 2 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Area / Indicator Target
Audit Committee / Senior Management

1. Audit Committee Satisfaction – measured 
annually

2. Chief Finance Officer Satisfaction – 
measured quarterly

Adequate

Good

Internal Audit Process
3. Each quarters audits completed to draft 

report within 10 working days of the end 
of the quarter

4. Quarterly assurance reports to the 
Contract Manager within 15 working days 
of the end of each quarter

5. An audit file supporting each review and 
showing clear evidence of quality control 
review shall be completed prior to the 
issue of the draft report ( a sample of 
these will be subject to quality review by 
the Contract Manager)

6. Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards

7. Respond to the Contract Manager within 
3 working days where unsatisfactory 
feedback has been received.

100%

100%

100%

Full

100%

Clients
8. Average feedback score received from 

key clients (auditees)
9. Percentage of recommendations 

accepted by management

Adequate

90%

Innovations and Capabilities
10. Percentage of qualified (including 

experienced) staff working on the 
contract each quarter

11. Number of training hours per member of 
staff completed per quarter 

60%

1 day

Page 36



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Head of Internal Audit 

To: Governance and Audit Committee, 12 September 2017

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District Council

Subject: Self-Assessment of the Committee

Purpose: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
document on “audit committees – practical guidance for local authorities 
and police” sets out the guidance in the function and operation of audit 
committees. It is good practice for audit committees to complete a regular 
self-assessment exercise, to be satisfied that the Committee is performing 
effectively. 

Recommendation(s): 

1) That Committee note the attached checklist at Appendix 1 to this report, conclude on the rating 
and approve the resulting action plan.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) document on “audit 
committees – practical guidance for local authorities and police” set out the guidance on the 
function and operation of audit committees. It represents CIPFA’s view of best practice and 
incorporates the position statement previously issued. The guidance states “the purpose of 
an audit committee is to provide those charged with governance independent assurance on 
the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control environment and the 
integrity of the financial reporting and annual governance processes”. 

1.2 The Section 151 Officer has overarching responsibility for discharging the requirement for 
sound financial management, and to be truly effective requires an audit committee to 
provide support and challenge. 

1.3 Good audit committees are characterised by; balanced, objective, independent 
knowledgeable and properly trained Members, a membership that is supportive of good 
governance principles, a strong independently minded chair, an unbiased attitude and the 
ability to challenge when required.

1.4 It is therefore good practice for audit committees to complete a regular self-assessment 
exercise against a checklist, to be satisfied that the Committee is performing effectively.

1.5  In addition, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also call for the audit committee to 
assess their remit and effectiveness, in relation to Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, to 
facilitate the work of this Committee. 

1.6 The Governance and Audit Committee has regularly carried out the self-assessment 
exercise in the past and has taken action where necessary to ensure full compliance with 
best practice. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7.



1.7 The updated guidance provides two tools against which the Committee can assess itself, 
the first (self-assessment of good practice) supports an assessment against recommended 
best practice to inform and support the Committee. The second assessment tool 
(evaluating the effectiveness if the audit committee) helps Committee Members to consider 
where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be effective the 
Committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence lined to specific 
improvements. 

1.8 At an informal meeting on the 22nd June 2017 three Committee Members reviewed and 
completed the two assessment tools. 

1.9 The assessment has highlighted the Members position and interpretation of adherence to 
best practice. The next step is for the Committee to evaluate their effectiveness against the 
assessment key (scoring of 1 to 5 on the second checklist at Appendix 1) and to agree the 
resulting action points.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The alternative approach would be for the Committee not to complete the self-assessment 
exercise, however this would result in no assurance being provided that the Committee is 
assisting the Council in achieving good corporate governance, and is sufficiently 
proactive.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Completion of the self-assessment provides feedback on the effectiveness of the current 
arrangements, and ensures that best practice is followed by the Committee, and good 
corporate governance is achieved. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they are 
proactive in helping to raise the profile of internal control,. .risk management and financial 
reporting at the Council.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

5.2.1 The Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that the service areas and 
risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities.

Page 38



5.3 Risk Management

5.3.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework which 
will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed. 
This is ensured by following best practice and adopting sounds terms of reference. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Not applicable.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix 1 Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist 

Page 39

mailto:ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Appendix 1- Self-assessment of good practice
This evaluation will support an assessment against recommended practice to inform and support the Audit Committee. This is a high-level 
review that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police. Where an 
Audit Committee has a high degree of performance against the good practice principle’s then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly 
based and has in place knowledgeable membership. These are essential factors in developing an effective Audit Committee. 

Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No
Audit Committee purpose and governance

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? √

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? √

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s position 
statement?

√

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and accepted across the authority? √

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in meeting the requirements of good 
governance?

√

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to accounts for its performance operating satisfactorily? √

Functions of the committee

7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core area identified in CIPFA’s position 
statement?

- Good governance
- Assurance framework
- Internal audit
- External audit
- Financial reporting 
- Risk management
- Value for money or best value
- Counter fraud and corruption 

√

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and 
that adequate consideration has been given to all core areas?

√

P
age 41



2

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake them?

√

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans in place to address this? √

11 Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not taking on any decision making powers that are 
not in line with its core purpose?

√

Membership and support

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the board been selected?
This should include:

- Separation from the executive
- An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the membership
- A size of committee that is not unwieldy
- Where independent members are used, that they have been appointed using appropriate process

√

13 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and skills? √

14 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings and training? √

15 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the core knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory?

√

16 Does the committee have good working relationships with key people and organisations, including external 
audit, internal audit and the chief finance officer?

√

17 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee provided? √

Effectiveness of the committee

18 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from those interacting with the committee or 
relying on its work?

√

19 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to the organisation? √

20 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of weakness? √

Notes:

P
age 42



3

18 – it is recognised that the Committee covers work in a specialist areas and the Committee are left to get on with the associated terms of 
reference.
19 – the role of the Committee gas grown and the Members have become more confident over time, and therefore adds value to the 
organisation. Members felt that they could add more value, but are guided by officers and accept the recommendations of the officers 
presenting the reports. If the Committee had any issues they felt that they knew where they could direct these to. 
20 – this will be developed, as needed, on conclusion of this self-assessment. 

P
age 43



4

Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee
This assessment tool helps Audit Committee members to consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be 
considered effective, the Audit Committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements. .
Assessment Key:
5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting the improvement across all aspects of 

this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable.
4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting improvement across some aspects of this 

area.
3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some evidence that demonstrates their 

impact but there are also significant gaps.
2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this support is limited.
1 no evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area. 

Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation examples, areas of strength 
& weakness

Assessment 
1-5

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision making

Providing robust review of the 
AGS and the assurances 
underpinning it
Working with key members to 
improve their understanding of 
the AGS and their contribution 
to it
Supporting reviews / audits of 
governance arrangements
Participating in self-
assessments of governance 
arrangements
Working with partners audit 
committees to review 

Attendance at this Committee meeting and 
others gives an overall picture and enables the 
Members to see how they fit in with the overall 
governance framework at the Council.
Members will regularly discuss items with 
officers and the governance structure is clear. 
The Committee are also aware that they need 
to focus on areas where it is potentially not 
working ok, and concentrate their attention 
there. 
It would be beneficial to have wider managers 
at the meetings, as appropriate. ACTION 
POINT

P
age 44



5

governance arrangements in 
partnerships

Contributing to the 
development of an effective 
control environment

Monitoring of the 
implementation of 
recommendations from 
auditors
Encouraging ownership of the 
internal control framework by 
appropriate managers
Raising significant concerns 
over controls with appropriate 
senior managers

Members felt they were confident that they can 
raise concerns and have discussions regarding 
the control environment and that reports from 
internal audit focus on how effective the control 
environment is. 

Supporting the establishment 
of arrangements for the 
governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks

Reviewing risk management 
arrangements and their 
effectiveness e.g. risk 
management benchmarking
Monitoring improvements
Holding risk owners to account 
for major / strategic risks

Members are confident in checking back on 
risks raised as part of reports and they are more 
confident now. 
Members felt that sometimes though they do 
need more of a bigger picture and clarity over 
the risks reported. 
The Members do benefit for being on other 
Committee’s and get a good “feeling” for those 
risks. 

Advising on the adequacy of 
the assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively

Specifying its assurance 
needs, identifying gaps or 
overlaps in assurance
Seeking to streamline 
assurance gathering and 
reporting 
Reviewing the effectiveness of 
assurance providers e.g. 
internal audit, risk 
management, external audit

The relevant information is forthcoming through 
the reports received from officer, and Members 
felt they would be confident to raise concerns / 
comments. 
Members felt they have confidence in the report 
received from officers and that they can follow 
up on management comments. 

Supporting the quality of the Reviewing the audit charter Members felt that they get a clear picture form 

P
age 45



6

internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence

and functional reporting 
arrangements
Assessing the effectiveness if 
internal audit arrangements 
and supporting improvements

the internal audit reports and are confident in 
questioning in the right area, as applicable. 
Members also felt that they could raise 
concerns confidentially, if appropriate. 

Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements

Reviewing major projects and 
programmes to ensure that 
governance and assurance 
arrangements are in place
Reviewing the effectiveness of 
performance management 
arrangements

In relation to the transformation programme 
Members felt they need to know what the 
Council is doing and that its right – Members 
felt that sometimes they needed more 
information. 
It was felt there could possibly be earlier pre-
scrutiny. For example have savings and targets 
been achieved as planned, and what has 
actually been achieved. 

Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money

Ensuring that assurance on 
value for money arrangements 
is included in the assurances 
received by the audit 
committee
Considering how performance 
in value for money is evaluated 
as part of the AGS

Covered in reports from external audit mainly, 
and Members have confidence in what they are 
told – however they recognised that there is 
little comparison. 

Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruption risks

Reviewing arrangements in 
place for countering fraud and 
corruption
Reviewing fraud risks and the 
effectiveness of the 
organisations strategy to 
address those risks
Assessing the effectiveness of 
ethical governance 
arrangements for both staff and 
members 

Training was recently provided in relation to 
Fraud. 
The Committee recognise that controls in 
relation to purchase orders need improving and 
they are keeping a watching brief on this. 
Members felt that policy is clear and they would 
know where to raise issues, however they feel 
that they are not often informed early enough if 
there are ay such issues.
Fraud Policies need updating and taking back 

P
age 46



7

to Committee for approval – ACTION POINT
As a result of this training to members on the 
Council’s fraud policies would be beneficial to 
increase understanding and Members role _ 
ACTION POINT

Promoting effective public 
reporting to the authority’s 
stakeholders and local 
community and measures to 
improve transparency and 
accountability

Improving how the authority 
discharges its responsibilities 
for public reporting, e.g. better 
targeting the audience, use of 
plain English
Reviewing whether decision 
making through partnership 
organisations remains 
transparent and publicly 
accessible and encouraging 
greater transparency

Reports received by officers are clear and 
Members understand the messages. 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Tuesday, 12 September 2017 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Governance and Audit Comittee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meetings for the 2017/18 municipal year.  Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered. 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

Page 49

Agenda Item 9.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 50



APPENDIX A
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2017/18

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

12 September 2017 ISA 260 Report 16/17 (previously known 
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2017-18

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Internal Audit For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements, 
and approval of the audited 16/17 
financial statements

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual

Risk Management Update Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

14 December 2017 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2016/17 External Audit Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Progress Report and Technical Update External Audit To update the Committee on progress 
with the external audit

Twice a year

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2017-18

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Twice a year

Fraud related policies Internal Audit To bring fraud related policies 
mentioned within paragraph 3.5 of the 
Annual Report and Opinion 16/17

P
age 51



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Mid Term Treasury Report 17/18 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements

Half Yearly

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 18/19

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators

Annual

Risk Management Update Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

15 March 2018 Audit Plan External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Grant Claims 2016/17 External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2017-18

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly/To 
each meeting

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2018/19

Internal Audit
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

Annual Internal Audit Workplan -
Mandatory approval

Annual

Audit Mandatory Inquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory inquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Item to be added twice yearly to Work Programme in December and June (as part of the year end reporting) – Update on the progress of 
agreed audit recommendations and whether management have implemented these as expected.  Report from Internal Audit. 

P
age 52


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Quarterly Risk Report, Quarter 1 2017-18
	Appendix 1 for Strategic Risk Report

	6. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Progress report on IA activity

	7. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment
	App 1 - checklist

	9. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A Work Programme


